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A Life Safety Code Recertification and 

State Licensure Survey was conducted by 

the Indiana State Department of Health in 

accordance with 42 CFR 483.70(a).

Survey Date:  07/19/16

Facility Number:  000525

Provider Number:  155468

AIM Number:  100267010

At this Life Safety Code survey, 

Breckenridge Health and Rehabilitation 

Center was found not in compliance with 

Requirements for Participation in 

Medicare/Medicaid, 42 CFR Subpart 

483.70(a), Life Safety from Fire and the 

2000 edition of the National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) 101, Life 

Safety Code (LSC), Chapter 19, Existing 

Health Care Occupancies and 410 IAC 

16.2.

This one story facility was determined to 

be of Type V (000) construction and was 

fully sprinklered.  The facility has a fire 

alarm system with hard wired smoke 

detectors in the corridors and spaces open 

to the corridors, and the 300 hall resident 

rooms, plus battery operated smoke 

alarms in all resident sleeping rooms on 

K 0000 Submission of this plan of 

correction does not constitute 

admission or agreement by the 

provider of the truth of facts 

alleged or correction set forth on 

the statement of deficiencies.  

The plan of correction is prepared 

and submitted because of 

requirement under state and 

federal law.  Please accept this 

plan of correction as our credible 

allegation of compliance. Please 

find enclosed this plan of 

correction for this survey.  Due to 

the nature of the survey finding, 

please find the sufficient 

documentation providing 

evidence of compliance with the 

plan of correction. The 

documentation serves to confirm 

the facility’s allegation of 

compliance.  Thus, the facility 

respectfully requests the granting 

of paper compliance.  Should 

additional information be 

necessary to confirm said 

compliance, feel free to contact 

me.
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the 100 and 200 halls.  The facility has a 

capacity of 77 and had a census of 32 at 

the time of this survey.

All areas where the residents have 

customary access were sprinklered and 

all areas providing facility services were 

sprinklered, except a garage used for a 

maintenance shop, plus two wood storage 

sheds.

Quality Review completed on 07/21/16 - 

DA

NFPA 101 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

A fire alarm system is installed with systems 

and components approved for the purpose 

in accordance with NFPA 70, National 

Electric Code and NFPA 72, National Fire 

Alarm Code to provide effective warning of 

fire in any part of the building.  Fire alarm 

system wiring or other transmission paths 

are monitored for integrity. Initiation of the 

fire alarm system is by manual means and 

by any required sprinkler system alarm, 

detection device, or detection system. 

Manual alarm boxes are provided in the path 

of egress near each required exit. Manual 

alarm boxes in patient sleeping areas shall 

not be required at exits if manual alarm 

boxes are located at all nurse's stations. 

Occupant notification is provided by audible 

and visual signals. In critical care areas, 

visual alarms are sufficient.  The fire alarm 

system transmits the alarm automatically to 

notify emergency forces in the event of fire. 

The fire alarm automatically activates 

required control functions. System records 

K 0051

SS=F

Bldg. 01
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are maintained and readily available.

18.3.4, 19.3.4, 9.6

Based on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to maintain 1 of 1 fire 

alarm systems in accordance with NFPA 

72.  NFPA 72, 1-5.4.6 requires trouble 

signals to be located in an area where it is 

likely to be heard.  NFPA 72, 1-5.4.4 

requires fire alarms, supervisory signals, 

and trouble signals to be distinctive and 

descriptively annunciated. This deficient 

practice could affect all residents, staff 

and visitors in the facility.

Findings include:

Based on observation on 07/19/16 at 

11:05 a.m. during a tour of the facility 

with Maintenance Supervisor, the Digital 

Alarm Communicator Transmitter 

(DACT) was located in the room with the 

fire alarm control panel (FACP) and 

generator transfer panel.  When the 

DACT was placed in trouble from phone 

line failure between 11:11 a.m. and 11:19 

a.m. it did not actuate a local audible 

trouble signal at the DACT or FACP, 

however, the "Line 1" yellow light was 

illuminated and the "Trouble" yellow 

light was flashing on the DACT.  Based 

on phone conversation, the fire alarm 

monitoring company did receive a trouble 

signal for phone line failure.  Based on 

interview at the time of observation, the 

K 0051 K 051 requires a fire alarm 

system be installed with systems 

and components approved for the 

purpose.

1.  No residents were harmed. 

2.  All residents have the potential 

to be affected, thus the following 

corrective actions have been 

taken;

3.  As a means to ensure ongoing 

compliance, a contractor was 

called to the facility to complete 

the necessary repairs to ensure 

there is an audible trouble alarm.

4.  As a means of quality 

assurance, the fire system will 

continue to be reviewed as part of 

the facility preventative 

maintenance program.  The 

preventative maintenance audits 

will be reviewed as part of the 

monthly quality assurance 

meetings with the plan of action 

adjusted accordingly, as 

warranted.

5.  The above corrective 

measures will be completed on or 

before August 18, 2016.

08/18/2016  12:00:00AM
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Maintenance Supervisor acknowledged 

the phone line failure did not actuate an 

audible trouble signal at the DACT or 

FACP.

3.1-19(b)

NFPA 101 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

Generators inspected weekly and exercised 

under load for 30 minutes per month and 

shall be in accordance with NFPA 99 and 

NFPA 110. 

3-4.4.1 and 8-4.2 (NFPA 99), Chapter 6 

(NFPA 110)

K 0144

SS=C

Bldg. 01

Based on record review and interview, 

the facility failed to ensure there was 

documentation 1 of 1 emergency 

generators was allowed a 5 minute cool 

down period after a load test.  LSC 

19.2.9.1 refers to LSC 7.9 which refers to 

LSC 7.9.2.3 which requires generators to 

be installed, tested and maintained in 

accordance with NFPA 110, Standard for 

Emergency and Standby Power Systems, 

1999 Edition.  NFPA 110, 4-2.4.8 Time 

Delay on Engine Shutdown requires that 

a minimum time delay of 5 minutes shall 

be provided for unloaded running of the 

Emergency Power Supply (EPS) prior to 

shutdown. This delay provides additional 

engine cool down. This time delay shall 

not be required on small (15 kW or less) 

air-cooled prime movers. This deficient 

practice could affect all residents, as well 

as staff and visitors in the facility.

K 0144 K144 requires generators be 

inspected weekly and exercised 

under load for 30 minutes per 

month.

1.  No residents were harmed.

2.  All residents have the potential 

to be affected, thus the following 

corrective actions have been 

taken;

3.  As a means to ensure ongoing 

compliance, the form utilized to 

document the exercising of the 

generator has been revised to 

include documentation regarding 

generator cool down following a 

load test, (See Attachment A).

4.  As a means of quality 

assurance, the monthly load 

testing of the generator will 

continue to be completes as part 

of the facility preventative 

maintenance program.  The 

preventative maintenance audits 

will be reviewed as part of the 

monthly quality assurance 

meetings with the plan of action 

08/18/2016  12:00:00AM
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Findings include:

Based on review of the facility's 

emergency generator monthly load test 

log on 07/19/16 at 10:25 a.m. with 

Maintenance Supervisor present, the 

generator log form documented the 

generator was tested monthly for 30 

minutes under load, however, there was 

no documentation on the form that 

showed the generator had a cool down 

time following its load test.  During an 

interview at the time of record review, 

Maintenance Supervisor confirmed the 

monthly generator log did not include 

documentation of a cool down time being 

recorded.

3.1-19(b)

adjusted accordingly, as 

warranted.

5.  The above corrective 

measures will be completed on or 

before August 18, 2016.
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